






 
          

 
MINUTES 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS  
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall ~ 201 North Brushy Street 

Leander, Texas  
 

Thursday ~April 10, 2014 at 7:00 pm 
 

 
 
 Place 1 Michelle Stephenson - Vice Chair      Place 4 Sid Sokol 
 Place 2 Joel Wixson              Place 5 Richard Allen 
  Place 3 Jason Anderson                                     Place 6 Betty Saenz  
               Place 7 Jeff Seiler - Chair 

 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order  
Meeting called to order at 7:04 pm. 

 
 

2. Roll Call  
 All Commissioners were present. 

 
 

3. Approval of Minutes:  
a. Regular Planning & Zoning Meeting: March 27, 2014 

Motion made by Vice Chair Stephenson to approve the minutes, seconded 
by Commissioner Anderson. Motion passed unanimously 
 

4. Director’s report to P & Z Commissioners on actions taken by the City Council 
Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services, reported on actions that 
were taken by the City Council at their April 3rd, 2014 meeting, on items 
that were recommended from the P & Z Commission. Reminded P & Z 
Commissioners of Joint work session with City Council on May 6th, at 
6:00 pm. 

             



 
 
 

5. Citizen Communications - Three (3) minutes of time is allowed, per speaker 
No citizen wished to speak. 

 
 

  Public Hearing 
 

6. Subdivision Case 14-FP-001:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Carneros Ranch, Section 1 Final Plat for 20.21 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel 
R032156; generally located approximately 190 feet north of the intersection of Vista 
Ridge Drive and Bagdad Road on the west side of Bagdad Road; Williamson County, 
Texas.  Applicant/Agent:  CSF Civil Group, LLC on behalf of MHI Central Texas, 
LLC.  
 

a)  Staff Presentation 
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and 
it has staff approval.  
 

b) Applicant Presentation 
Jim Cook was present for questions. 

 
c) Open Public Hearing 

           Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
           No one wished to speak. 
 

d) Close Public Hearing 
           Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 

 
e) Discussion 

Some discussion took place 
 

f) Consider Action 
Commissioner Wixson moved to approve the final plat with staff 
recommendations, Commissioner Allen seconded the motion. Motion 
passed unanimously. 

a)  
 

7. Subdivision Case 13-CP-010:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Marbella Concept Plan, for 85.28 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R031302, 
R031303, R031368, R031305, R383410, R433132, R432798, R031371, R031370, 
R031369, and R031304 generally located ¾ of a mile east of the intersection of Hwy 
183A and RM 2243, adjacent to the south side of RM 2243, Williamson County, 
Texas.   Applicant: Brian Birdwell on behalf of NK Land Investment, LLC, Weldon 
Stephen Walker and Tammy Walker. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

a)  Staff Presentation 



Martin Siwek, Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and it has 
staff approval.  
 

b) Applicant Presentation 
Brian Birdwell was present for questions. 

 
c) Open Public Hearing 

           Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
           No one wished to speak. 
 

d) Close Public Hearing 
           Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 

 
e) Discussion 

           Some discussion took place 
 

f) Consider Action 
Commissioner Allen moved to approve the concept plan with staff 
recommendations, Commissioner Anderson  seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

8. Subdivision Case 14-CP-001:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Stewart Crossing Concept Plan, for 66.2 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R433136, 
R031257, R031259, R031261, R031260, R432796, and R432795 generally located 
1,000 feet to the east of the northeast corner of the intersection of 183A Toll Road 
and E. Woodview Drive Leander, Williamson County Texas.  Applicant: Jones & 
Carter, Inc. on behalf BW and Carlene Pruett Trust and Samuel, Ida Nell Pearson 
Family Trust and Samuel and Ida Nell Pearson and BW and Carlene Pruett Family 
Trust. 
 
 

a)  Staff Presentation 
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and 
it has staff approval.  
 

b) Applicant Presentation 
Shawn Graham was present for questions. 

 
c) Open Public Hearing 

           Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
La Juana Jean Henthorne – spoke against the road plan on the 
concept plan, feels road is on her property. 
Ron Davis – did not speak but turned in a card against the road along 
the west property line. 

      
d) Close Public Hearing 

           Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 
e) Discussion 

Some discussion took place 
 
 
 
 
 



 
f) Consider Action 

Commissioner Anderson moved to approve the concept with staff 
recommendations, Commissioner Allen seconded the motion. Motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

9.   Zoning Case 14-Z-006:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of 
several tracts of land located to the west of the western terminus of Osage Drive in 
the Bluffs at Crystal Falls Subdivision; Legally described as 13.385 acres more or less 
out of the B.F. Davis Survey 73, the J.H. Harris Survey 96, the I.A. Hampton Survey 
613, and the Lucinda Carter Survey; TCAD Parcel 831299. Currently, the property is 
zoned SFU-2-B (Single- Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), and 
SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact). The property is proposed to be zoned SFU-2-B 
(Single- Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-
Family Compact), Leander, Travis County, Texas. Applicant: Sam Kiger on behalf of 
Taylor Morrison at Crystal Falls, LLC. 

 
 

a)  Staff Presentation 
Martin Siwek, Planner, discussed request & surrounding land uses. 

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

Michael Slack spoke on the purpose of the zoning. 
 

c) Open Public Hearing 
           Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
           No one wished to speak. 
 

d) Close Public Hearing 
           Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 

 
e) Discussion 

Some discussion took place 
 

f) Consider Action 
Commissioner Sokol moved to approve the zoning request, 
Commissioner Wixon seconded the motion. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

 
 

Meeting adjourned at 7:38 pm 
 
 
  

 
                                                                                  Chairman Seiler 

                                           

ATTEST: 
Ellen Pizalate, P & Z Secretary 



Item # 6 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

  
APRIL 24, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 14-FP-006:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on the Travisso, Section 1, Phase 2 Final Plat for 122.674 
acres more or less; TCAD Parcel 382583 and 513809; generally 
located to the northeast of the intersection of RM 1431 and 
Travisso Parkway, more specifically located to the northeast of the 
intersection of Travisso Parkway and Venezia View; Travis 
County, Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the final step in the subdivision process.  Pursuant 

to Section 212.005 of the Texas Local Government Code, approval 
by municipality is required since the final plat satisfies the 
applicable regulations without requesting any variances that 
require approval of the Planning & Zoning Commission.   

 
Origination: Applicant/Agent:  Samuel Kiger on behalf of Travisso, Ltd. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: This final plat includes 186 single-family lots and 17 non-

residential lots including landscape, greenbelt, water 
quality/detention, irrigation, and water reclamation plant lots.  This 
proposal meets all of the requirements of the Subdivision 
Ordinance.  Staff recommends to conditionally approve the final 
plat with the following condition: 

 
1. All conditions listed in the Subdivision Ordinance Article II, 

Section 24 (f) (3) regarding the acceptance of the final 
improvements or the posting of fiscal assurance for the final 
improvements have been met.   

 
Motion: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval of the 

final plat for the subject property. 
  
Attachments: 1. Final Plat 
  
Prepared By:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP  
 Senior Planner    04/17/2014 























Item # 7 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
APRIL 24, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case #14-Z-001: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of two parcels of land located along Ronald Reagan 
Boulevard on the east side, south of High Lonesome Trail and north 
of CR 264 for 5.52 acres more or less. Parcels #R473782 and 
R032342. Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B (Single-
Family Rural) and SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban).  The property 
is proposed to be zoned GC-3-B (General Commercial), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.   

 
Background: This request is the first step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: SEC Planning, LLC on behalf of Phillip C. Joseph. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  
 
Motion: APPROVAL:  The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends 

approval of rezoning the subject property to __________. 
  (zoning district) 
 
 DENIAL:  The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends 
 denial of the applicant’s request to rezone the subject property. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map  
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.   Letter of Intent 
  
Prepared By:   Martin Siwek, GISP  
 Planner  4/14/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
PLANNING ANALYSIS  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-001 

Spenn Tract 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Philip Joseph 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban)  
 Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) – pending annexation 
    
Proposed Zoning: GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
 
Size and Location: The property is located at 17740 and 17720 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and 

is approximately 5.521 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFR-2-B Under Construction Single-Family Neighborhood (Reagan’s 
Overlook) 

EAST OCL Developed Single Family Home 

SOUTH Interim SFS-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

WEST GC-3-C Non-Developed Commercial Property (proposed Palmera 
Ridge PUD) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

 
USE COMPONENT: 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 
grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE 3:   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 

service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, LI and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from Interim SFS-2-B (Single Family 
Suburban) district and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
district.  Half of this property is currently subject to a voluntary annexation.  This process will 
run concurrently with the rezoning request.  The property is located at the edge of the Town 
Center node, which is centered at the intersection of Hero Way and Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. The 
Town Center node encourages a mix of uses including apartments, major commercial and retail, 
and office uses. 
 
Immediately north of this property is the single family Reagan’s Overlook subdivision which is 
currently under construction, and immediately to the south and east of this property are presently 



Attachment # 1                 

 

developed single family homes. West of the property, on the adjacent side of Ronald W. Reagan 
Blvd is a non-developed GC-3-C zoned district that is currently part of the proposed Palmera 
Ridge PUD. 
 
The intent statements of the GC component speaks to allowing for small and large scale 
commercial and retail development uses located in high traffic areas.  It also notes that access 
should be provided through an arterial street, and that the heaviest concentration of this 
component should be located at intersections of arterial streets.  
 
The proposed Type 3 site component associated with the GC use component permits the use of 
the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory 
buildings.   Permitted outdoor uses include: 

 Outdoor Display (limited 30% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Storage (limited 20% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Fuel Sales 
 Overhead Commercial Doors  
 Drive-Through Lanes (also permitted in Type 2) 

 
The proposed Type B architectural component requires that 85% of the street facing walls are 
masonry and the 50% of the overall structure is masonry.   
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends denial of the requested GC-3-B (General Commercial) and approval of LC-2-
B (Local Commercial) district.  The LC use component permits the development of small scale 
commercial, retail, personal services and office uses.  The intent is for this use component to be 
located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday needs of the 
nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  In addition, the 
Type 2 site component limits the amount of outdoor activity and is an appropriate use located 
next to residential neighborhoods.  



REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE 2B

2B

2B

CR 264

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

AIRPO
RT D

R

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-001
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Spenn Tract

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



CR 264

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-001 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Spenn Tract

S WEST DR



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 4



Item # 8 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
APRIL 24, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Comprehensive Plan Case 14-CPA-001:  Hold a public hearing 

and consider action on amendments to the Leander Roadway Plan 
as set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Background: Staff is proposing the following amendments to the Roadway Plan: 

1. Changing the name from Roadway Plan to Transportation Plan 
2. Adding: 

 Secondary Trail Corridors  
 Kauffman Loop (south of the intersection of Ronald W. 

Reagan Blvd and W SH 29)  
 A2 (Connecting Old 2243 W to Nameless Road) 
 North/South Connector between South Street and Hero 

Way. 
3. Realigning: 

 A1  
 C2 aka Collaborative Way 
 East Crystal Falls Parkway 

4. Removing: 
 CR 270 (north of E. San Gabriel Pkwy) 
 Parkside Pkwy (east of the intersection of CR 175 and 

Journey Pkwy) 
5. Updating roadway names to reflect new names adopted by City 

Council or new roadways that were recently platted 
6. Increasing the width of sidewalks/trails and adding 

sidewalks/trails 
 
Origination: Planning Department 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Current Roadway Plan 

2. Proposed Transportation Plan 
3. Proposed Matrix 

  
Prepared By:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP  
 Senior Planner  04/16/2014 



A1

C3

C1

C10

C11

C2

C7

C8

C5

C9

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

HERO WAY

C4

LA
KE

LIN
E B

LV
D

CR 179

OSAGE DR

E NEW HOPE RD

CR
 27

0

SONNY DR

WATERFALL AVE

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

VISTA RIDGE DR

MEL MATHIS AVE

CR
 17

9

LA
KE

LIN
E B

LV
D

HERO WAY

CR 179

E NEW HOPE RD

RM 2243

CR 279

183A TOLL RD

W SH 29

CR
 17

5

RM 1431

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

S U
S 1

83

NAMELESS RD

CR 281

CR
 27

3

US
 18

3

S BAGDAD RD

OLD 2243 WEST

CR
 17

6

OSAGE DR

W WHITESTONE BLVD

W NEW HOPE DR

E WHITESTONE BLVD

HERO WAY

S W
ES

T D
R

N BELL BLVD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

CR
 27

0

E NEW HOPE DR

CR 177

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

CR 280 - C2

CR
 27

1

CR 179

W SOUTH ST

LEANDER DR

CR
 26

7 -
 C5

CR 175 - OLD SAM BASS RD

HALSEY DR

CR 26
8 - 

C6

N 
US

 18
3

SONNY DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

VISTA RIDGE DR

PARKSIDE PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

WATERFALL AVE

SU
NN

Y B
RO

OK
E 

DR

E SOUTH ST

MUNICIPAL DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D
MCCARTHUR DR

HAZELWOOD ST

E NEW HOPE DR

SONNY DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

RM 14
31

US
 18

3

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

City of Cedar Park, Texas

City of Jonestown, Texas

City Limits
E.T.J.

Roadway Plan Classification
Existing Roads *

Major Arterial
Collector
Required Connector
Toll Road

Proposed Roads
Major Arterial
Collector
Required Connector

RM 2243

Rev. 1 - Revised: City Limit / ETJ
Rev. 2 - Revised: Roadway names  Removed: Cougar Country Dr. (Ord. 10-031-00 passed 12/16/2010)
Rev. 3 - Added: C10 / C11  Removed: SC1  Revised: Color scheme / linetypes / Osage Dr. / Sam Bass Rd. / table (Ord. 12-010-00 passed 02/16/2012)
Rev. 4 - Revised: City Limit / ETJ  Extended: Required connector southward across Hero Way (Ord. 12-019-00 passed 05/03/2012) 
Rev. 5 - Revised: City Limit / ETJ / location of C-8 (Ord. 13-067-00 passed 11/07/2013)

PROPOSED PROP. PAVEMENT
TOLLWAY SEGMENT ROW*** CROSS SECTION****

N S E W
183A All Existing Tollway & Frontage 10' 10'

MAJOR ARTERIAL
Bagdad Road S City Limits to Old 2243 West Existing Existing 6' 8'

Bagdad Road / CR 279  Old 2243 West to CR 280 100' 66' 8' 6'
CR 279 CR 280 to N ETJ Limits 82' 54' 8' 6'

Crystal Falls Parkway US 183 to Lakeline Boulevard Existing Existing 8' 6'
E Crystal Falls Parkway US 183 to Ronald W Reagan Boulevard 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

RM 2243 Hero Way to E City Limits 140' / TOD 2 @ 41' / TOD 6' 8'
Hero Way US 183 to RM 2243 TOD TOD 8' 6'

Old 2243 West / Nameless Road US 183 to 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard 100' 66' 8' 6'
1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard to RM 1431 82' 54' 6' 8' 8' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard S City Limits to Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing 6' 6'
Crystal Falls Parkway to San Gabriel Parkway 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6' 8' 6'

Mel Mathis Avenue South Street to US 183A TOD TOD 22' 22'
Ronald W Reagan Boulevard RM 2243 to S City Limits Existing Existing 8' 8'

RM 2243 to N City Limits Continue Exisitng Continue Exisitng 8' 8'
San Gabriel Parkway Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to 1,000' W of Bagdad Road 140' / TOD 2 @ 41' / TOD 6' 8'

1,000' W of Bagdad Road to Nameless Road 90' 2 @ 24' 6' 8'
Sam Bass Road All 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6'

SH 29 All Existing 6' 8'
US 183 All Existing / TOD Existing / TOD 10' 6'

A1 All 82' 54' 6' 8'

COLLECTOR*****
C1 All 60' 37' 8' 6'

C2 (CR 280) All 64' 41' 8' 6'
C3 Commercial Portion 70' 45' 8' 6'

Residential Portion 60' 37' 8' 6'
C4 All 70' 45' 8' 6'

C5 (CR 267) All 64' 41' 8' 6'
C6 (CR 268) All 64' 41' 8' 6'

C7 All 70' 45' 8' 6'
C8 US 183A to RM 2243 64' 41' 8' 6'

C9 (CR 271) All 70' 45' 8' 6' 6' 8'
C10 RM 1431 to Nameless Road Varies Min of 100' Varies Min of 2 @ 24' 8' 8' 8' 8'
C11 Osage Drive to C10 60' 37' 5' 5'

CR 179 Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to Sam Bass Road 70' 45' 6' 6'
CR 270 All 60' 37' 8' 6'
CR 273 E Crystal Falls Parkway to South Street 64' 41' TOD TOD
CR 281 All 60' 37' 6' 8'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to Crystal Falls Golf Club Existing Existing
E Crystal Falls Parkway Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to E City Limits 70' 45' 8' 6'

Halsey Drive South of C2 70' 45' 6' 6'
North of C2 60' 37' 6' 6'

Hazelwood Street All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Heritage Grove Road All 64' 41' 8' 6'

Horizon Park Boulevard E Crystal Falls Parkway to McCarthur Drive Existing Existing
Lakeline Boulevard San Gabriel Parkway to CR 281 90' 2 @ 18' 6' 8'

Leander Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
McCarthur Drive All Existing Existing
Municipal Drive Bagdad Road to Katherine Way Existing Existing 6' 6'

Katherine Way to West Street 60' 37' 6' 6'
Old Sam Bass Road FM 2243 to Sam Bass Road 64' 41' 8' 6'

Osage Drive Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 Existing Existing 5' 5'
Lakeline Boulevard to Outlook Ridge Loop Existing Existing 5' 5'

Outlook Ridge Loop to RM 1431 70' 37' 5' 5'
RM 2243 (Old) N East Street to Hero Way 70' 48' 8' 6'
Sonny Drive US 183 to West Drive Existing Existing 6' 6'

West Drive to Lakeline Boulevard 64' 41' 6' 6'
South Street (East & West) All Existing Existing 6' 6'

South Brook Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Sunny Brooke Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Vista Ridge Drive Lakeline Boulevard to Bagdad Road 64' 41' 6' 6'
Waterfall Avenue All 60' 37' 6' 6' 6' 6'

West Drive N of Crystal Falls Parkway 60' 37' 6' 6'

          altered to accommodate drainage or as determined appropriate by the City Engineer.  

(See ******)

ROADWAY PLAN ROW, SIDEWALKS, TRAILS & CROSS SECTIONS**

          provided as necessary to match section of opposite streets at intersections.  ROW width may be 
          appropriate transition to provide for right turn lane.  Additional ROW and pavement shall be 

PROPOSED TRAILS
& SIDEWALKS

***      Except  2 @ 41' section, increase ROW width within 300' of  intersection of arterials by 15' with 
**       Streets, sidewalks and trails in TOD to follow Transect Plan and Smart Code.  Street alignments subject to adjustment.
*        Table reflects ultimate road section.  Existing roads may or may not conform to ultimate section.

          Space Master Plan and Composite Zoning Ordinance.  

****     Measurements are to lip of gutter.  Pavement sections subject to modification by City Engineer.
*****    Additional collector streets required as necessary in accordance with the Transportation Criteria 
          Manual for projected traffic and land use.
******   Width and location of sidewalks and trails to comply with requirements of Parks, Recreation & Open 

2007
ROADWAY PLAN

City Of Leander, Texas

Revision 5



San Gabriel R iver Trail

Bloody Hollow Trail

Brushy Creek Main Branch Trail

Sandy Creek Trail

Mason Creek T
ra

il

South Branch Brushy Creek Trail

North Branch Brushy Creek Trail

< To Wilco River Ranch Park

A2

A1

C1

C7

ECFP

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

HERO WAY

TRAVI SS
O PK

WY

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

W 
BR

OA
DE

 S
T

C11

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

CR
 17

6

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

C OLLABORATIVE WAY

METRO DR

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

A1

C11

RM 2243

CR
 27

9

CR 175

W SH 29

183A TOLL RD

RM 1431

RO
NA

LD
W

RE
AG

AN
BL

VD

S U
S 1

83

NAMELESS RD

HERO WAY

CR 281

US
 18

3

S BAGDAD RD

OLD 2243 WEST

CR 280

CR
 17

6

OSAGE DR

W WHITESTONE BLVD

W NEW HOPE DR

E WHITESTONE BLVD

S W
ES

T D
R

N BELL BLVD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

E NEW HOPE DR

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

CR
 27

0

CR
 26

7

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

CR 26
8

JOURNEY PKWY

W SOUTH ST

HAL
SE

Y D
R

LEANDER DR
MEL MATHIS AVE

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

KAUFFMAN LOO P

CR
 26

9

N BAGDAD RD

N 
US

 18
3

SO

NNY DR

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

CR 177

VISTA RIDGE DR

HERITAGE GROVE RD

TR
AV

ISSO PKWY

SOUTH BROOK DR

WATERFALL AVE

SU
NN

Y B
RO

OK
E 

DR

E SOUTH ST

MUNICIPAL DR

MCCARTHUR DR

HAZELWOOD ST

W BROADE ST

SONNY DR

US
 18

3

RM 14
31

OSAGE DR

E NEW HOPE DR

RONALD
W

REAGAN BLVD

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

City of Cedar Park, Texas

City of Jonestown, Texas

City Limits

E.T.J.

Transportation Plan Classification
Existing

Toll Road

Arterial

Collector

Required Connector

Secondary Trail

Proposed
Arterial

Collector

Required Connector

Secondary Trail

RM 2243

Transportation Plan

City Of Leander, Texas

E WOODVIEW DR

PROPOSED PROPOSED
TRAIL SEGMENT ROW TRAIL WIDTH

Brushy Creek - North Branch Nameless Rd. to  Convergance w/North Branch * 8' - 10'
Brushy Creek - South Branch Lakeline Blvd. to Convergance w/North Branch * 8' - 10'
Brushy Creek - Main Branch Convergance of N & S Branches to Southern ETJ * 8' - 10'
Mason Creek Lakeline Blvd. to Bagdad Rd. Existing

Bagdad Rd. to Brushy Creek Main Branch * 8' - 10'
San Gabriel River Trail Bagdad Rd. to Georgetown's Garey Park * 8' - 10'
Sandy Creek Future Sandy Cr. Community Park to Nameless Rd. * 8' - 10'
Nameless Valley Ranch Trail Crystal Falls W. PEC to Sandy Cr. Tail * 8' - 10'

* Wiidth determined by the Parks & Recreation Director on a site-by-site basis.  Minimum width 25'.  Land must 
be above the top bank and suitable for trail construction.

SECONDARY TRAILS 

1

PROPOSED PROP. PAVEMENT
TOLLWAY SEGMENT ROW (Min) 3 CROSS SECTION 4

N S E W
183A All Existing Tollway & Frontage 10' 10'

ARTERIAL
A1 All 82' 54' 6' 10'
A2 All 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Bagdad Road S City Limits to Old 2243 West Existing Existing 6' 8'
Bagdad Road / CR 279  Old 2243 West to CR 280 100' 66' 10' 6'

CR 175 All 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6'
CR 279 CR 280 to N ETJ Limits 82' 54' 8' 6'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 Existing Existing 8' 6'
E Crystal Falls Parkway US 183 to CR 175 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Hero Way Inside TOD TOD TOD 10' 6'
Hero Way TOD boundary to RM 2243 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Old 2243 West / Nameless Road 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 100' 66' 10' 6'
RM 1431 to 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard 82' 54' 6' 10' 10' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard S City Limits to Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing 6' 6'
Crystal Falls Parkway to San Gabriel Parkway 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6'

Mel Mathis Avenue RM 2243 to US 183A TOD TOD 22' 22'
Ronald W Reagan Boulevard All Existing Existing 10' 10'

RM 2243 Hero Way to E ETJ 110' 2 @ 27' 6' 10'
San Gabriel Parkway 1,000' W of Bagdad Road to Ronald W Reagan Boulevard 110' / TOD 2 @ 27' / TOD 6' 10'

Nameless Road to 1,000' W of Bagdad Road 110' 2 @ 27' 6' 10'
SH 29 All Existing 6' 10'
US 183 All Existing / TOD Existing / TOD 10' 6'

COLLECTOR 5
Broade Street Commercial Portion 70' 45' 8' 6'

Residential Portion 60' 37' 8' 6'
C1 All 60' 37' 8' 6'
C7 All 70' 45' 8' 6'
C11 All 60' 37' 5' 5'

Collaborative Way All 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 175 RM 2243 to CR 177 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 267 All 64' 41' 6' 8'
CR 268 All 64' 41' 10' 6'
CR 270 All 60' 37' 10' 6'
CR 280 All 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 281 All 60' 37' 6' 8'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to Crystal Falls Golf Club Existing Existing
E Crystal Falls Parkway/CR 177 Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to E City Limits 70' 45' 8' 6'

Halsey Drive South of Collaborative Way 70' 45' 6' 6'
North of Collaborative Way 60' 37' 6' 6'

Hazelwood Street All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Heritage Grove Road All 64' 41' 8' 6'

Horizon Park Boulevard E Crystal Falls Parkway to RM 2243 64' 41' 6' 8'
Horizon Park Boulevard McCarthur Drive to E Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing

Journey Pkwy Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to Sam Bass Road 70' 45' 6' 8'
Kauffman Loop All 70' 45' 8' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard San Gabriel Parkway to CR 281 90' 2 @ 18' 8' 6'
Leander Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'

McCarthur Drive All Existing Existing
Metro Drive All 70' 45' 8' 6'

Municipal Drive Bagdad Road to Northern Trail Existing Existing 6' 6'
Northern Trail to West Street 60' 37' 6' 6'

Osage Drive Outlook Ridge Loop to US 183 Existing Existing 5' 5'
Outlook Ridge Loop to RM 1431 70' 37' 5' 5'

Raider Way E Woodview Dr to RM 2243 64 41 6' 8'
183A to E Woodview Dr 70' 45' 6' 8'

RM 2243 N East Street to Hero Way 70' 45' 8' 6'
Sonny Drive West Drive to Leander Dr Existing Existing 6' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard to West Drive 64' 41' 6' 6'
South Street (East & West) All Existing Existing 6' 6'

South Brook Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Sunny Brooke Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Travisso Parkway All Varies Min of 100' Varies Min of 2 @ 24' 8' 8' 8' 8'
Vista Ridge Drive Lakeline Boulevard to Bagdad Road 64' 41' 6' 6'
Waterfall Avenue All 60' 37' 6' 6' 6' 6'

West Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
E Woodview Dr All 70' 45' 8' 6'

7 - Where the proposed ROW, sidewalk and pavement result in less than 4' of landscape/lawn area per side of roadway behind the curb, additional ROW should be 
dedicated to meet the 4' minimum width lawn area.  In lieu of additional ROW, commercial tracts can place the sidewalk in a pedestrian access easement and residential 
developments can provide a landscape lot parallel to the ROW. 

4 - Measurements are to lip of gutter.  Pavement sections subject to modification by City Engineer.
5 - Additional collector streets required as necessary in accordance with the Transportation Criteria Manual for projected traffic and land use.
6 - Width and location of sidewalks and trails to comply with requirements of Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan & Composite Zoning Ordinance

(See 6)

TRANSPORTATION PLAN ROW, SIDEWALKS, TRAILS & CROSS SECTIONS 2

PROPOSED TRAILS
& SIDEWALKS

3 - Increase ROW width within 300' of  intersection of arterials by 15' with appropriate transition transitation to provide for right turn lane.  Additional ROW and pavement 
shall be provided as necessary to match section of  opposite streets at intersections.  ROW width may be altered to accommodate drainage or as determined appropriate 
by the City Engineer.  

2 - Streets, sidewalks and trails in TOD to follow Transect Plan and Smart Code.  Street alignments subject to adjustment.
1 - Table reflects ultimate road section.  Existing roads may or may not conform to ultimate section.



PROPOSED PROP. PAVEMENT
TOLLWAY SEGMENT ROW (Min) 3 CROSS SECTION 4

N S E W
183A All Existing Tollway & Frontage 10' 10'

MAJOR ARTERIAL
A1 All 82' 54' 6' 10'
A2 All 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Bagdad Road S City Limits to Old 2243 West Existing Existing 6' 8'
Bagdad Road / CR 279  Old 2243 West to CR 280 100' 66' 10' 6'

CR 175 All 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6'
CR 279 CR 280 to N ETJ Limits 82' 54' 8' 6'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 Existing Existing 8' 6'
E Crystal Falls Parkway US 183 to CR 175 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Hero Way Inside TOD TOD TOD 10' 6'
Hero Way TOD boundary to RM 2243 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Old 2243 West / Nameless Road 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 100' 66' 10' 6'
RM 1431 to 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard 82' 54' 6' 10' 10' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard S City Limits to Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing 6' 6'
Crystal Falls Parkway to San Gabriel Parkway 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6'

Mel Mathis Avenue RM 2243 to US 183A TOD TOD 22' 22'
Ronald W Reagan Boulevard All Existing Existing 10' 10'

RM 2243 Hero Way to E ETJ 110' 2 @ 27' 6' 10'
San Gabriel Parkway 1,000' W of Bagdad Road to Ronald W Reagan Boulevard 110' / TOD 2 @ 27' / TOD 6' 10'

Nameless Road to 1,000' W of Bagdad Road 110' 2 @ 27' 6' 10'
SH 29 All Existing 6' 10'
US 183 All Existing / TOD Existing / TOD 10' 6'

COLLECTOR 5

Broade Street Commercial Portion 70' 45' 8' 6'
Residential Portion 60' 37' 8' 6'

C1 All 60' 37' 8' 6'
C7 All 70' 45' 8' 6'
C11 All 60' 37' 5' 5'

Collaborative Way All 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 175 RM 2243 to CR 177 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 267 All 64' 41' 6' 8'
CR 268 All 64' 41' 10' 6'
CR 270 All 60' 37' 10' 6'
CR 280 All 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 281 All 60' 37' 6' 8'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to Crystal Falls Golf Club Existing Existing
E Crystal Falls Parkway/CR 177 Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to E City Limits 70' 45' 8' 6'

Halsey Drive South of Collaborative Way 70' 45' 6' 6'
North of Collaborative Way 60' 37' 6' 6'

Hazelwood Street All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Heritage Grove Road All 64' 41' 8' 6'

Horizon Park Boulevard E Crystal Falls Parkway to RM 2243 64' 41' 6' 8'
Horizon Park Boulevard McCarthur Drive to E Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing

Journey Pkwy Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to Sam Bass Road 70' 45' 6' 8'
Kauffman Loop All 70' 45' 8' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard San Gabriel Parkway to CR 281 90' 2 @ 18' 8' 6'
Leander Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'

McCarthur Drive All Existing Existing
Metro Drive All 70' 45' 8' 6'

Municipal Drive Bagdad Road to Northern Trail Existing Existing 6' 6'
Northern Trail to West Street 60' 37' 6' 6'

Osage Drive Outlook Ridge Loop to US 183 Existing Existing 5' 5'
Outlook Ridge Loop to RM 1431 70' 37' 5' 5'

Raider Way E Woodview Dr to RM 2243 64 41 6' 8'
183A to E Woodview Dr 70' 45' 6' 8'

RM 2243 N East Street to Hero Way 70' 45' 8' 6'
Sonny Drive West Drive to Leander Dr Existing Existing 6' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard to West Drive 64' 41' 6' 6'
South Street (East & West) All Existing Existing 6' 6'

South Brook Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Sunny Brooke Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Travisso Parkway All Varies Min of 100' Varies Min of 2 @ 24' 8' 8' 8' 8'
Vista Ridge Drive Lakeline Boulevard to Bagdad Road 64' 41' 6' 6'
Waterfall Avenue All 60' 37' 6' 6' 6' 6'

West Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
E Woodview Dr All 70' 45' 8' 6'

(See 6)

TRANSPORTATION PLAN ROW, SIDEWALKS, TRAILS & CROSS SECTIONS 2

PROPOSED TRAILS
& SIDEWALKS

3 - Increase ROW width within 300' of  intersection of arterials by 15' with appropriate transition transitation to provide for right turn lane.  Additional ROW and pavement shall be 
provided as necessary to match section of  opposite streets at intersections.  ROW width may be altered to accommodate drainage or as determined appropriate by the City 
Engineer.  

2 - Streets, sidewalks and trails in TOD to follow Transect Plan and Smart Code.  Street alignments subject to adjustment.
1 - Table reflects ultimate road section.  Existing roads may or may not conform to ultimate section.

4 - Measurements are to lip of gutter.  Pavement sections subject to modification by City Engineer.
5 - Additional collector streets required as necessary in accordance with the Transportation Criteria Manual for projected traffic and land use.
6 - Width and location of sidewalks and trails to comply with requirements of Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan & Composite Zoning Ordinance



Item # 9 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
APRIL 24, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Ordinance Case 14-OR-001:  Hold a public hearing 

and consider action on amendments to the Subdivision Ordinance, 
to add provisions for temporary stockpiling of materials, to add 
provisions for trail corridors, and to modify the exceptions 
associated with block width requirements. 

 
Background: Staff is proposing the following amendments to the Subdivision 

Ordinance: 
1. Addition of provisions that would permit the storage of 

materials during the subdivision process. 
2. Addition of trail corridors to the Transportation Improvements 

requirements. 
3. Modification of the exceptions associated with block width 

requirements. 
 
Origination: Planning Department 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval 
 
Attachments: 1.   Summary of Proposed Amendments 
  
Prepared By:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP  
 Senior Planner  04/16/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
PLANNING ANALYSIS  

 
ORDINANCE CASE 14-OR-001 

SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 
 

 
ARTICLE II, SECTION 23. CONSTRUCTION PLANS (c)  
 

(7) Storage of Fill Material: 
(i) Provide the location of the fill material pile.   
(ii) The fill material shall consist of earthen material originating from the subdivision 

only, and remain free from debris, and shall be suitable for use as fill material on 
the future phases of the subdivision.  The fill material may not include any 
material from outside of the subdivision. 

(iii) Comply with the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and other sedimentation 
and erosion controls adopted by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
while storing the fill material. 

(iv) The fill material will be placed and stored in such manner so that it is stable, with 
the side slopes no steeper than a 3:1 (h:v) slope. 

(v) The fill material will be located so as not to disturb any wetland areas that may 
exist in the subdivision, and will be placed in a manner and location so as not to 
adversely affect the natural course of drainage across the Property or impede 
drainage from neighboring properties. 

(vi) Fiscal surety in accordance with Section 28 of this Ordinance in an amount equal 
to the cost plus ten percent of removal of the fill material will be filed with the 
City prior to the acceptance of the subdivision that generates the fill material.  The 
fiscal surety will be based on an estimate prepared by the engineer for the 
Subdivision and approved by the City Engineer.  The fiscal surety shall be in a 
form approved the City Attorney and shall be compliant with City ordinances.   

(vii) Limit the height of the fill material to ten (10’) feet. 
(viii) The location of the fill material must comply with the following setback 

requirements: 
a) 400’ setback from major roadways as identified on the Roadway Plan 
b) 100’ setback from all other roadways platted at the time of the fill material 

pile approval 
c) 100’ setback from residential structures. 

(ix) Permission to store fill material in the subdivision will expire and terminate in the 
event that a preliminary plat, construction plans, or a final plat for any portion of 
the Property expires. 

 
  



Attachment # 1                 

 

 

ARTICLE III, SECTION 42. TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS (b) (2) 
 

(2) Additional street and trail design standards shall be as follows: 
(i) All streets and trails shall be planned to properly integrate with the existing and 

proposed system of local, collector and arterial streets and trails and shall 
conform to the Roadway Plan.  Arterial streets shall be provided to the extent that 
such streets are roughly proportional to the projected impact of the proposed 
development.  Prior to the consideration of an action on a subdivision plan or plat, 
staff shall prepare, and the City Engineer shall review and approve, an 
individualized determination providing a rough proportionality assessment and a 
determination of whether the required dedication(s), payment of fees or 
construction costs, and/or improvement of infrastructure set forth in the 
determination is roughly proportionate to the impact of the proposed subdivision.  
The determination shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to, a 
comparison of the percentage of land within a subdivision to be dedicated for an 
arterial roadway with the percentage of land in the City and ETJ designated on the 
Roadway Plan as arterial roadways.  The analysis shall include the entire tract of 
land contained within the initial subdivision application required by the City and 
shall include existing roadways outside of the land as deemed appropriate by the 
City Engineer.  If the individualized determination demonstrates that the proposed 
street dedication is not roughly proportional to the impact of the proposed 
subdivision, the additional right-of-way needed to comply with the Roadway Plan 
that exceeds the limits of rough proportionality shall be shown as “Reserved 
Street ROW” on the face of the plat or plan. 

(ii) Local streets shall be designed so as to calm traffic and discourage “cut through” 
traffic including the following: 
a) Residential collector streets shall be preferred over neighborhood collector 

streets in proposed residential areas. 
b) Straight sections of local streets and collector streets with single family or 

two family lots fronting on them shall not exceed one thousand three hundred 
(1,300) feet in length unless other traffic calming design is utilized as 
approved by the City or unless such design is approved by the City Engineer. 

(iii) Streets and trails shall be extended to the boundary lines of the tract as necessary 
for eventual extension to the adjacent tract(s) to ensure that block lengths do not, 
in general, exceed the limits defined by this ordinance and to provide access to 
adjacent property. 

(iv) Provisions shall be made for the appropriate extension of existing and proposed 
streets and trails.  Streets and trails intended to be extended from an adjacent tract 
shall be extended. 

(v) Street and trail right-of-way shall be dedicated with the plat, and the street and 
trail shall be constructed with the subdivision improvements for the plat, for the 
full length and/or width of the lots in the subdivision adjacent to such street and 
trail, unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

ARTICLE III, SECTION 45. BLOCKS AND LOTS (a)  
 

(a) Blocks. 
(1) The length, width, and shape of blocks shall meet the following standards: 

(i) Provide adequate building sites (lots) suitable to the special needs of the type of use 
designated on the plat; 

(ii) Accommodate lots of the size and dimensions required by this Section and the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance; 

(iii) Provide for convenient access, circulation, control, and safety of street traffic; 
(iv) Minimize reductions in the capacity of adjacent streets in so far as possible by 

reducing the number of turning movement conflicts; 
(v) Provide an appropriate response to the limitations and opportunities of topography. 

and 
(vi) Increase the ability of building sites (lots) to receive or to be protected from solar 

gain as the season requires in order to improve utility efficiency and increase the 
livability of each lot. 

(2) Except for SFR zoning districts, residential blocks shall not exceed a perimeter length of 
three thousand five hundred (3,500) feet, and residential blocks in SFR zoning districts 
shall not exceed a perimeter length of six thousand (6,000) feet except as otherwise 
provided for herein. 

(3) Blocks along arterial streets and blocks containing or proposed to contain primarily 
commercial or industrial uses shall not exceed a perimeter length of five thousand five 
hundred (5,500) feet. 

(4) The width of blocks shall be sufficient to accommodate two (2) tiers of lots with 
minimum depth as required by this Section, exceptions to this width shall be permitted in 
blocks adjacent to major arterial or collector streets identified on the Roadway Plan if a 
landscape lot is provided adjacent to the arterial or collector and screening is provided in 
compliance with screening requirements listed in Article VI, Section 8 of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance, railroads, waterways, or other topographical features prohibiting a 
second lot tier. 

... 
 

(b) Lots.  All land area within the boundaries of the subdivision or re-subdivision except that area 
specifically dedicated as public right-of-way for any purpose shall be designated as a lot. 

 
(10) Double (reverse) Frontage Lots. 

(i) Single family or two family residential lots shall not have double frontage not take 
access on two (2) non-intersecting local and/or collector streets, and 

(ii) In Rresidential subdivisions, all lots adjacent to an arterial street identified on the 
Roadway Plan shall comply with Article VI, Section 8 of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance which requires these lots to also have frontage on a local street. 
Vehicular access to these lots shall be from the local street only. Non-residential 
lots with double frontage shall have off-set access points to inhibit cut-through 
traffic. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

SINGLE-FAMILY & TWO-FAMILY  
LOTS FACING MAJOR ARTERIAL ROADWAY 

M
A

JO
R

 A
R

TE
R

IA
L 

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 

30’ ROW 

10’ LANDSCAPED 
ROW OR LOT 

22’ COMMON 
ACCESS ROAD 

R
O

W
 

FIGURE P 

 

ARTICLE VI, SECTION 8 OF THE COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE  
 

 
 
 

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

M
A

JO
R

 A
R

TE
R

IA
L 

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 

SINGLE-FAMILY & TWO-FAMILY -LOTS BACKING UP TO  
MAJOR ARTERIAL ROADWAY 

R
O

W
 

10’ LANDSCAPED 
LOT WITH  

PRIVACY FENCE 

FIGURE Q 

 

 




